ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COVMUNI TY AND REAQ ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 18, 2004
1:34 p.m
TAPE (S) 04-5

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Bert Stedman, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Kim El ton

Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 227
"An  Act relating to nunicipal initiative and referendum
el ections."

MOVED SB 227 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 269
"An Act relating to access to the library records of a child by
a parent or guardian.”

MOVED CSSB 269( CRA) OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 227

SHORT TITLE:. MUNI | NI TI ATI VE AND REFERENDUM ELECTI ONS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEVENS G

05/ 15/ 03 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
05/ 15/ 03 (S) CRA, STA

02/ 18/ 04 (S) CRA AT 1:30 PM FAHRENKAMP 203
BILL: SB 269

SHORT TI TLE. PARENT ACCESS TO CHI LD S LI BRARY RECORDS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) GREEN

01/ 16/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 04 (S) CRA, HES
02/ 11/ 04 (S) CRA AT 1:30 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- February 18, 2004



02/ 11/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d
02/ 11/ 04 (S) M NUTE( CRA)
02/ 18/ 04 (S) CRA AT 1:30 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

W TNESS REG STER

Li nda Murphy, derk

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough

144 North Bi nkley Street

Sol dot na, AK 99669

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 227
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Lyda G een

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor SB 269

Jacquel i ne Tupou

Aide to Senator Lyda G een

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned provisions of SB 269

Lynne Shepherd

Representative, Al aska Library Association
P. O Box 81804

Fai r banks, AK 99708

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 269

June Pi nnel | - St ephens

Al aska G vil Liberties Union

Fai r banks, Al aska 99707

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 269

Andree McLeod
No address provi ded
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 269

George Smth
Acting Director
Li braries, Archives & Miseuns
Departnent of Education &
Early Devel opnent
P. O, Box 110571
Juneau, AK 99801-0571
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 269

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- February 18, 2004



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-5, SIDE A

CHAIR BERT STEDVAN called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Present
were Senators Wagoner, Gary Stevens, Lincoln, Elton and Chair
St edman.

SB 227- MUNI | NI TI ATI VE AND REFERENDUM ELECTI ONS

CHAI R BERT STEDMAN announced SB 227 to be up for consideration
and asked Senator Gary Stevens to introduce his bill

SENATOR GARY STEVENS par aphrased t he sponsor statenent:

SB 227 was introduced specifically to help |ocal
governnments avoid costly special initiative elections
and referenduns brought forward by voters. In many
cases, these nmeasures are not so pressing in nature
that they could not wait for the regular runicipal
el ection.

Speci al elections are costly and generally result in a
| ower voter turnout than the regular election.
Recently, the Fairbanks North Star Borough had over 46
petitions filed in a period of 4 nonths. Although
these petitions resulted in only one special election
- at a cost of $35,000 -, there was a potential for
many nore special elections at great cost to the
muni ci pality.

Thi s bi |l could result in cost savi ngs to
muni cipalities that could choose to wait wuntil the
next regular election, typically in GOctober, to

consider an issue. This legislation would give the
muni ci pal governing body the option of <calling a
special election if the council or assenbly w shed to
have the initiative and referendum considered in a
nore tinely manner.

The Al aska Municipal League, the Fairbanks North Star

Bor ough, the Kenai Peninsula Borough, and the Al aska
Associ ation of Minicipal Cerks support this bill

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- February 18, 2004



SENATOR KIM ELTON said he read the bill and didn't see the
provi sion that gave nunicipalities the option to hold a special
el ection and wondered whether that is in another provision of
|l aw that isn't covered in the bill.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS said that is correct, they already have the
option to hold a special election and this allows them to
post pone the election if they believe that is prudent.

SENATOR GEORG ANNA LINCOLN reviewed the letters in support of
the i ssue and asked whet her Anchorage had responded.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS said they didn't solicit a comrent from
Anchorage and didn't receive one.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked if they solicited a response from
Fai r banks.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS conceded they had not. The request cane
from the clerk's association and they received the letters of
support wi thout solicitation.

CHAI R STEDVAN opened the hearing to public participation.

LI NDA MJURPHY, clerk of the Kenai Peninsula Borough, testified
via teleconference and advised that she has adm nistered | ocal
el ections for nore than 20 years. To address Senator Lincoln's
guestion, she explained that in Title 29 this provision isn't a
home rule limtation so Anchorage wouldn't be affected because
it is a home rule nunicipality.

Wth increasing conpetition for decreasing funds, many
municipalities are facing grave financial difficulties and can't
afford unbudgeted speci al el ecti ons, she said. The nost
inportant point is that special elections attract very few
voters, which increases the |ikelihood that the election results
won't reflect the true will of the community. She encouraged
menbers to pass the bill.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked her to respond to Senator Elton's
guestion about municipalities' ability to call special elections
if they choose to do so.

M5. MJRPHY explained that Alaska Statutes provide that the
governing body may call special elections any tine as long as
they properly notice the election. She saw nothing in SB 227
that would affect that ability.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- February 18, 2004



CHAI R STEDVAN noted there was no further testinony. He asked for
a notion.

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER notioned to pass SB 227 from conmttee
with individual recommendations and attached zero fiscal note.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

CHAI R STEDVAN cal l ed a brief at-ease.

SB 269- PARENT ACCESS TO CH LD S LI BRARY RECCRDS

CHAI R BERT STEDVAN reconvened the neeting and announced SB 269
to be up for consideration. The bill was previously heard and
relates to parental access to children's library records. He
noted there was a commttee substitute (CS) and asked for a
notion to adopt it as the working docunent.

SENATOR THOVAN WAGONER made a notion to adopt the CS for SB 269,
\'l version, as the working docunent.

SENATOR GEORA ANNA LI NCOLN obj ected for di scussion purposes.
CHAI R STEDVAN asked t he sponsor to expl ain the changes.

SENATOR LYDA GREEN, sponsor of SB 269, said Jacqueline Tupou had
done nost of the research on the bill and she could better
expl ai n the changes.

JACQUELINE TUPQU, staff to Senator G een, referenced the
di scussion at the last neeting regarding age limt for parental
access and said she found out nore about FERPA the Famly
Educational Rights and Privacy Act. She read from the U S.
Departnent of Education web site:

FERPA gives parents certain rights with respect to
their children's education record. These rights
transfer to the student when he or she reaches the age
of 18 or attends a school beyond the high school
| evel .

In addition to that, there is a provision in statute that says:
No funds under any applicable program shall be nade
available to any state agency that has a policy of

denying, or effectively prevents, the parents of
students the right to inspect and review the education

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- February 18, 2004



records maintained by the state agency on their
children who have been attendants in any school or
educational agency or institution that is subject to
the provision of this section.

Federal law clearly says that parents have the right of access
until the child reaches 18, and also denies federal funding for
education prograns and institutions such as libraries for
nonconpl i ance.

M5. TUPQU said they drew up a CS relating to age limt after
| earning about those two points. Page 1, line 13 identifies a
child under 18 years of age.

CHAIR STEDVAN asked Senator Lincoln if the explanation was
sufficient.

SENATOR LI NCOLN wi t hdrew her objection to adopting the CS as the
wor ki ng docunent, but advised that she had questions on the
bill.

SENATOR ELTON wanted clarification before the CS was adopted. He
noted that the quote from FERPA referred to state educational
agenci es and asked whether that would nean a school district or
t he Departnent of Education.

M5. TUPQU replied she discussed that point with legislative
|l egal and "they have decided that this would apply to the
| egislation that you currently have before you and that's why
we' ve nade this change accordingly.”

SENATOR ELTON wasn't sure he understood her answer and asked if
a school district is a state education agency that the FERPA
| anguage would apply to or would it apply only to a state
educati on agency such as the Departnent of Educati on.

M5. TUPQU said her understanding is that it does apply to schoo
districts and "those people that are receiving federal nonies
for their education program”

SENATOR ELTON followed up by asking if this applies to the state

library as well since it is a part of the Departnent of
Educat i on.
M5. TUPQU reread the statutory provision, "any school or

educati onal agency or institution"” and said she understands that

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- February 18, 2004



to nean that the term "institution™ would apply to the state
library.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS interpreted the |anguage as reference to
educational records and not I|ibrary books and asked if he was
m ssing the point. He asked her to coment on whether
educational records would include checking out library books.

M5. TUPOU said SB 269 speaks to the statute that tal ks about
public records. In addition to the special provisions that say
that Ilibraries wll be private, there is also a special
provi sion that says where parental access is allowed for those
private records. "That's what we're tal king about currently here
today is the records thensel ves," she said.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked whether |libraries actually keep
records of who checks out a particular book.

M5. TUPQU replied that point isn't addressed in the |egislation.
The state archivist could answer the question about the schedul e
for retention of records.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS said he was asking whether those records
are kept at all.

M5. TUPQU said she understands that records are kept for three
years at the state library and there is a suggested schedul e for
| ocal governnments. Also, certain municipalities have their own
schedule for record retention so it varies. She maintained the
bill doesn't address that so she hadn't researched it further.

SENATOR LINCOLN said she needed to ask the sanme question in
anot her way because the bill talks about library records and the
guote refers to educational records. She questioned how
educational records relate to library records.

M5. TUPQU said, "Qur legislation specifically nakes provisions
for including public libraries as well as public schoo
libraries.” She nmade the point that |egislative |egal holds that
it could be construed to nean all libraries and even if it is
applicable to just public school libraries, SB 269 levels the
playing field and nakes it <clear that all Ilibraries are
i ncl uded.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS confessed he needed nore specific

clarification on what they were trying to correct. He asked
whet her they were trying to nake it possible for parents to pick

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- February 18, 2004



up library books for their children as soneone testified or were
they trying to correct another issue.

SENATOR GREEN reviewed the discussion from the previous hearing.
She introduced the |egislation because two friends of hers were
unable to get information on their child' s library records. One
issue related to an overdue book and the other was about a book
on hold. In the second instance, the librarian wouldn't tell the
parent the title of the book their child had on hold. She
asserted it is an outrageous that a parent isn't able to access
their child s library records when the parent is ultimtely
responsible for the books their child checks out or the fines
they incur. She assured nenbers she was not delving in the areas
of confidentiality rights or censorship. She sinply wants
parents to have access to their child's public library records
just as they already have to their child' s public school library
records.

CHAI R STEDVMAN noted for the record that the \|l version CS was
t he worki ng docunent before the commttee.

SENATOR ELTON asked if the parent in the second instance was
able to pick up the book.

SENATOR CGREEN replied the parent had to take the child wth
t hem

SENATOR ELTON smiled and said he was reluctant to ask the
conservative question, but this appeared to be a |arge paradi gm
shift. Wy would we want to do this, he questioned. This would
be a state mandate to community and nonprofit libraries telling
them how they nust operate. Wiy shouldn't comunities make their
own decisions and rules on this type of issue, he asked.

SENATOR GREEN | aughed and replied she assunes that nmany people
believe that the original statutory |I|anguage included all
i braries.

M5. TUPQU opined the conservative question is the reverse. Wy
does state law dictate to public libraries that they can't |et
parents access their children's records?

SENATOR ELTON admitted he was puzzled. Cearly, he said, AS
40. 25. 140(b) applies to public elenentary and secondary schools,
but right now a |ocal assenbly or council may craft rules to
apply to their municipal libraries. This would take away that

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- February 18, 2004



ability so he couldn't understand the claim that SB 269 would
give nmunicipal libraries nore |atitude.

M5. TUPQU said section 1 (a) talks about library records being
confidential. She continued, "Unless we make an exenption in
statute, those aren't confidential records so we had to dictate
to the library what their policy will be."

SENATOR LINCOLN told Senator Geen that after she left the
hearing |ast week, soneone from the Al aska Library Association
testified that the issue of child abuse is a reason for not
giving a parent access to a child s records. She asked the
sponsor to respond to the claim that an abused child m ght be
subjected to further harm if an abusing parent |earned that the
child was seeking information and hel p.

SENATOR GREEN replied, " The issue of confidentiality of records

of <children is far broader than Ilibrary information and
different agencies handle it differently.... This seens to be so
confined an issue | do not see that as being gernmane to what

we' re tal king about."

SENATOR GARY STEVENS said he thought he understood what the
sponsor was trying to acconplish, but he was still concerned
about the age issue. He reflected that as a retired college
professor, he had a nunber of 18-year-old high school students
who took his classes and this legislation could include them He
opined they mght be overreaching when they include 18-year-
ol ds.

SENATOR GREEN replied she didn't establish an age initially; it
is FERPA that set the age of 18 and under. She said, "It really
woul dn't matter whether or not we pass this. Their requirenent
is a federal |aw"

SENATOR ELTON foll owed up on Senator Gary Steven's question and
said FERPA applies only to school libraries and he didn't
believe it was necessarily appropriate to apply FERPA provisions
to public libraries when FERPA only applies to libraries of
educational institutions.

SENATOR GREEN told him that was his judgnent and their decision
was to use under 18 years of age.

SENATOR ELTON asked if there is any provision in state |aw that

prohibits a child from waiving confidentiality to their library
records.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- February 18, 2004



SENATOR GREEN t hought that was nentioned i n FERPA.

M5. TUPQU expl ained that FERPA says that parents have access to
their child' s records.

SENATOR ELTON said he understands how FERPA applies and whom it
applies to. FERPA doesn't apply to a public library he stated
enphatically. Again, he asked whether any provision of |aw
prohibits a child fromwaiving their confidentiality rights at a
public library.

M5. TUPQU replied that is a technical |egal question and they
woul d have to consult legislative |egal for the answer.

SENATOR ELTON asked whet her soneone fromthe library association
woul d provi de testinony.

CHAI R STEDVAN sai d he was planning on that.

M5. TUPQU added that when they gave legislative legal sone
anecdotal stories about policies around the state, they were
told that Ilibraries that have chosen to give out children's
records are nonconpliant with state |aw.

CHAI R STEDVAN cal | ed Lynn Shepherd to testify.

LYNN SHEPHERD, governnent relations chair for the Al aska Library
Associ ation (AkLA), read from her prepared testinony:

It appears that the proposed anendnent to AS 40. 25. 140
is intended to solve two problens:

e Parents needing to pay fines for materials
checked out by their children but not being aware
of the itens on | oan

e Parents wanting to pick up library materials for
their children who cannot be present at the tine
of checkout

Last week, AkLA presented reasons for opposing
t he proposed wordi ng of the anendnent.

W have examned the statutes of 49 states wth
regard to the confidentiality of library records.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- February 18, 2004



Only 8 states allow parental inspection of both
school and public library records of their mnor
children: AL LA UT GA W OH W SD

Just 1 state, in addition to AK, allows parental
i nspection of school I|ibrary records of mnor
children. NM

40 states protect the confidentiality of Ilibrary
records for all users except:

23 states specify that a library patron
may give perm ssion for the rel ease of
hi s/ her records

6 states specify that a library may
make public the information pertaining
to overdue materials and 10 others
specify such records may be disclosed
"for the orderly managenent of the

library" - probably referring to the
status of overdue, lost, and danmaged
material s

In only 2 states, do the statutes specifically
include academc and state libraries wth
parental rights.

In summary, approximately 85 percent of states

provide for the confidentiality of the library
records of mnors. And sone of these (e.g. SC
AR) even specify that school l|ibrary records are

i ncl uded anong those records that are protected.

AKLA | eadership has discussed the various issues
involved - parental rights, children's rights,
i brary staff rights, and public property
protection.

M5. SHEPHERD said the association has several suggestions

to clarify the issue while still protecting the rights of
children. They believe that I|ibrary records related to
overdue, lost, and damaged Ilibrary materials should be

available to parents provided that the child s persona
identifying information is not released. She observed that
is how educational records and Departnent of Transportation
records are handl ed in Al aska Statutes.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -11- February 18, 2004



Al so, reserved library material for children under 16 years
of age should be released to a parent or guardi an provided
that the child gives signed witten consent at the tinme the
materials are rel eased.

She said the association believes that this solves severa
problens. It would permt parents to keep track of and pick up
material their child checks out; it would protect mnors who are
responsi ble borrowers and who want or need privacy regarding
library material they use; it would protect personal identifying
information that can be in a library record; it would protect
library staff who would have witten proof of authorization to
rel ease information to a parent.

The association also recomrends elinmnating nention of the state
and the University of Alaska libraries in section 2 (c). She
said she has an interpretation of FERPA that says, "the
perm ssion or consent required of and the right supported to the
parents of the student shall, thereafter only be required of and
accorded to the student attending that institution of
post secondary education. Their reading of FERPA is that although
there are sone exceptions, the student nust always give their
witten consent.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked who belongs to the Alaska Library
Associ ati on.

M5. SHEPHERD replied the nenbership consists of professional
librarians, library admnistrators, library staff and library
trustees for all types of libraries.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked why they suggest elimnating reference to
state and university |ibraries.

M5. SHEPHERD said it is the conflict with FERPA and she isn't
sure that the records of a wuniversity student would be
accessible in any case without witten consent.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if the association worked wth the sponsor
to craft a proposed anendnent.

M5. SHEPHERD spoke of tight schedul es.
SENATOR WAGONER conmmented that the problem he has with dropping

reference to the university library is that in the Kenai area
there is a nultiple wuse arrangenent between the schoo

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -12- February 18, 2004



libraries, the nunicipal library and the university library to
make better use of limted resources.

SENATOR ELTON observed that they heard testinony that alleged
that under FERPA you are denied federal funds if you don't
provi de access to educational records.

M5. SHEPHERD said she didn't have a copy of their interpretation
of FERPA in front of her, but it is just the reverse of that
statenent. She advised the association's reading is that, "A
parent does not have access and if that is violated, then the
institution doesn't get funding."

SENATOR ELTON referred to FERPA, section 1232g (B) and read,

No funds under any applicable program shall be nade
available to and state educational agency (whether or
not t hat agency is an educational agency or
institution under this section) that has a policy of
denying, or effectively prevents, the parents of
students the right to inspect and review the education
records. ..

He then <conpared that section of FERPA wth the library
associ ation handout t hat says 40 states pr ot ect t he
confidentiality of library records for all wusers. He comented
that the data is confusing, but it seens as though 40 states are
not conpliant w th FERPA

SIDE B
2:22 pm

SENATOR ELTON continued to say that he was unconfortable wth
what the conmmttee was told about the application of FERPA if,
in fact, 40 states are out of conpliance.

CHAI R STEDVAN cal | ed on June Pinnell-Stephens to give testinony.

JUNE PI NNELL- STEPHENS, Al aska Civil Liberties Union (ACLU past
president and current board nenber, testified via tel econference
from Fairbanks. She told the commttee, "I do not support this
anendnent to confidentiality of library records.”

She nmde the point that parents are responsible for their
children's use and abuse of library materials whether or not
they agree with them or even know about them Also, once a
library card is issued, anyone who has the card can use it and

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -13- February 18, 2004



it's not uncommon for parents to do so. She asserted that the
library records could be released under the proposed anendnent
and information m ght be divulged to a divorced spouse that may
or may not have custody of the child.

M5. PINNELL- STEPHENS said that nost |ibraries send notices to
alert users that they have overdue material and those notices
provide parents sufficient information to track down their
children's material.

She stated that there are two possible reasons for the bill
First is to help parents avoid mnor inconvenience associated
with handling their <children's library transactions. Twenty-
three other states provide a solution to that issue by allow ng
any user to authorize release of their records and the ACLU
woul d support such an anendnent.

The second reason for the bill is to help parents control the
books their children read. The right to privacy is guaranteed
under the state constitution and is the basis for the
confidentiality statute, she asserted. That right 1is not
restricted by age. Furthernore, w thout the guarantee of privacy
and confidentiality, there can be no freedom of inquiry.

She encouraged parents to guide their own children in the use of
the library, but made the point that children should be able to
use the library w thout fear of punishnent. In conclusion, she
urged the conmittee to support the constitutional right to
privacy as represented in the original |aw

CHAI R STEDMAN thanked Ms. Pinnell-Stephens for her testinony
then called Andrea McLeod to testify.

ANDREA MLEOD testified via teleconference from Anchorage. She
reported that she is the parent of a 21 year old and she fully
supports SB 269. She stated that she was appalled to | earn about

the two instances that precipitated the bill and charged that it
is acrinonious public policy that is adversarial to parents with
children under 18 vyears of age. "Parents are legally and

absolutely responsible for their children until they reach 18 -
the age of nmpjority. At the very least, parents do not need any
publicly funded Iibrarian encroaching on their inherent and
absolute parental rights," she said.

CHAI R STEDMAN t hanked Ms. McLeod and brought the discussion back
before the conm ttee.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -14- February 18, 2004



SENATOR ELTON asked whether the state library director would
answer a few questions.

GEORGE SMTH, acting director or the D vision of Libraries,
Archives & Miseuns, sat down and said he would entertain
questi ons.

SENATOR ELTON asked whet her he had read the FERPA materi al .

MR SMTH said FERPA isn't relevant in his work and he didn't
consider hinself to be an expert on that federal |egislation. He
added that he too was perplexed because the information
presented |eads to the conclusion that either 40 states are out
of conpliance or FERPA doesn't apply to a library. "It's got to
be one or the other," he said.

SENATOR ELTON remarked that he mght be inferring too much, but
he assunes that the provisions of FERPA have never been applied
to state libraries.

MR SM TH said that is correct and added, "I think it's strictly
within the educational environnment and in this case, the state
| i brary would not be included even though we are in a departnent
of education. Not all state libraries are in the Departnent of
Education [and Early Devel opnment]."

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if he had ever denied a parent access to
records.

MR. SM TH expl ained he has been in state libraries nost of his
career. Twice he was director of a public library and once he
was director of an academc |ibrary and he said, "Personally I
am surprised that a public library director - and |I'm assum ng
these were public library directors in Al aska - denied a parent
access to the child' s records when the child gave perm ssion

He continued to say that he mght have broken the |aw, but he
probably woul d have given the parent the information.

He said he finds it interesting that 23 states specifically
address authorizing the release of patron's library records in
their confidentiality law. "It's clear that half our states see
this as problematic if you don't address it directly in the
| aw, " he argued.

The other issue is what happens when library materials are
overdue and a parent is unable to access the records. He noted
that, "either directly or indirectly a third of our states do

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -15- February 18, 2004



address that in their law in that they do release that

information to the parent.” Also, he knew of several instances
in Al aska where a public library received legal advice that if a
child has overdue Ilibrary material they have broken their

contract with the library and it's acceptable for the library to
rel ease the information to the parent.

SENATOR LINCOLN stated she wants to protect a child that has
been abused and who doesn't want a parent to have access to
their records, but she also wants to protect parental rights.
Having said that, she nade the that point that an abused child
woul d probably sign any permssion slip their parent told them
to sign whether they wanted that parent to have access or not.

MR SM TH acknowl edged that is an wunfortunate but probably
accurate observation. Sadly, he didn't know of a way to legally
address that situation.

SENATOR WAGONER asked whether it isn't the parent who 1is
ultimately responsible for paying library fines.

MR SMTH said his wunderstanding is that the parent s
financially responsible wuntil the child reaches mgjority and
that is age 18 in Alaska and he thought it would be very
appropriate to address that in | aw.

SENATOR WAGONER opined it is a stretch to think that an abused
child would turn to the library when |ooking for answers. Child
abuse is beyond what this legislation is trying to correct, he
sai d.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS noted that a child can use library materi al
wi t hout checking anything out and that is never a part of any
record. He remarked that having raised three children he has
paid a small fortune in overdue library books. However, his
library sends postcard notices advising patrons when they have
overdue materials so he knows exactly which books are overdue.

MR SMTH said different Ilibraries have different ways of
notifying patrons of overdue materials.

SENATOR ELTON read section 1 (a) of the bill and stated that it
seens to prohibit libraries from releasing information
identifying a patron, but it doesn't prohibit releasing
i nformati on about what that patron is reading. He asked whether
any other provision of law prohibits releasing information such
as the title of a book.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -16- February 18, 2004



MR SMTH said no, this is the only statute that addresses
library records. He thought that was an interesting way to read
the law, but didn't disagree with the interpretation. Having
read the confidentiality laws for all 50 states he explained
that nost states include library material itself as being an
identifying part of the record.

SENATOR ELTON remarked that he believes it would be difficult to
construe that his checking out a book on Darwin would be
personally identifying informati on because |ots of people check
out books on Darw n.

MR. SM TH agreed with that statenent.

SENATOR ELTON stated that wuntil the question regarding his
reading of section 1 (a) is answered, the bill mght not be
necessary because there nay be no prohibition against releasing
titles to parents.

MR. SM TH expl ained he arrived in Al aska shortly after the |aw
was passed in 1985 and he has been the one who interpreted the
law for school and public I|ibraries over +the years. He
maintained that it has always been assumed that Ilibrary
materials are considered part of the record. He conceded that
the statute m ght not have been witten properly, but the intent
is that books that patrons check are part of the record.

CHAI R STEDVAN cl osed public testinony and asked for a notion.

SENATOR WAGONER nade a notion to nove \I version, CSSB 269 (CRA)
from commttee with individual recomendati ons and acconpanyi ng
fiscal note.

SENATOR ELTON obj ected and sai d:

Aside from the point that the bill my not be
necessary, | think that we're trying to take a very
broad approach to solve tw relatively discrete
situations and I'm not clear in ny mnd whether we
need a change in law to do that or if in fact
|ibraries have the ability to ask of any patron that
they waive their confidentiality to the materials that
are being checked out of the library. |I'm synpathetic
to the notion that people, especially famlies, ought
to have sonme control over the materials that young
peopl e have access to. Having said that, | think there

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -17- February 18, 2004



are many situations that when we try to apply the
broad scope of law to ensure that that happens there
are many situations that are caught up and that create
real problens wthin a famly. The Senator from
Ranpart has nentioned sone of those.

It also seens to ne that what we may be doing is
trying to fix a problemthat really doesn't get to the
root of it. R ght now, young people can go on the
conputer and get access to any kind of information
they want with no ability for a parent or a famly
menber to find out what kind of information they're
accessi ng.

| tend to think that when you have information that is
avai l abl e t hr ough l'ibraries t hat are run by
professional |ibrarians, that we ought to give them
the latitude, under existing law, to mnake decisions
that best works for them best works for the patrons
and best works for the communities in which they are
operating r at her t han havi ng relatively br oad
prohi bitions that are established at the state |evel.

For all of those reasons, M. Chair, |I'mgoing to vote
no.

CHAI R STEDVAN asked whet her there were any ot her conments.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked where the bill would go after |eaving
this comm ttee.

CHAIR STEDVAN replied it would go to the Health Education and
Soci al Services Conmmittee next.

CHAI R STEDVAN called for a roll call vote. The notion to nove \I
version, CSSB 269 (CRA) from conmittee passed with Senators
Elton and Lincoln voting no and Senators Wagoner, Gary Stevens,
and Chair Stednman voting yes.

CHAI R STEDMAN announced that he would hold commttee neetings on

just Wednesday of each week wunless the workload dictated
ot herwi se. He then adjourned the neeting at 2:45 pm

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 18- February 18, 2004



